2009

Jospeh Billings v. Paul James Toscano : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

I INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal by Joseph Billings (plaintiff and appellant) from the final judgment of the District Court of Utah, Third Judicial District, Salt Lake, County (Case No. 090907164) entered for defendants and respondents Paul James Toscano and Paul Toscano, P.C. The judgment disposed all of the claims alleged in this action on a motion for summary judgment filed by respondents. The clerk of the Third District Court filed the order granting summary judgment on October 27, 2009.

II STATEMENT OF APPEALABILITY AND APPELLATE COURT JURISDICTION

This appeal is taken from the foregoing judgment, which finally disposes all of the issues between the parties. Notice of Appeal was filed timely on November 23, 2009. [CT, Vol. II, 403]. The court of appeals notified the parties that a final order had not been prepared according to Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 7 (f) (2) and entered by the clerk of the court. Respondents (the prevailing parties) thereafter submitted a proposed final order pursuant to Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 7 (f) (2) on February 18, 2010. The district court entered final judgment on February 24, 2010. This court has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Utah State Rules of Court 3 and 42.

III

ISSUES RAISED IN THE TRIAL COURT AND PRESENTED ON APPEAL AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

- 1. The District Court Erred in Granting Summary Adjudication of Count One of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process Because Appellant Controverted Respondents' Assertion of Prior Settlement of the Claim and Established Disputed Material Facts and Genuine Issues in Support of the Cause of Action.**

Issue Raised Before the Trial Court: [CT, Vol. II, 246] [CT, Vol. II, 209-224] [CT, Vol. II, 225] [CT, Vol. II, 234] [CT, Vol. II, 209-224; CT, Vol. II, 225; CT, Vol. II, 234]

- 2. The Federal Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement of a Debtor's Estate Did Not Bar Count One of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process or Any Other Cause of Action Contained in First Amended Complaint Because Respondents Failed to Assert and Explicitly Waived the Affirmative Defenses of Res Judicata or Collateral Estoppel in the Trial Court.**

Issue Raised Before the Trial Court: [CT, Vol I, 209] [RT, 8, Lines 5-11] [CT, Vol. II, 209-224; CT, Vol. II, 225; CT, Vol. II, 234]

- 3. The Federal Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement of a Debtor's Estate Did Not In Any Case Satisfy the Requirements of Res Judicata or Collateral Estoppel And Even if Respondents had not Waived these Affirmative Defenses, the Trial Court Should Have Denied Summary Judgment on the Basis of Appellant's Affidavits**

Issue Raised Before the Trial Court: [RT, 8, Lines 5-11] [CT, Vol. II, 398-402 (order after ruling)] [RT, 8, Lines 5-11] [CT, Vol. II, 398-402 (ruling after hearing)] [CT, Vol. II, 398-402 (ruling after hearing)] [CT, Vol. II, 366 (Affidavit of Disputed

Facts); CT, Vol. II, 378, Request for Judicial Notice of the United States Bankruptcy Code and the Debtor's Chapter 7 Petition and Schedules] [CT, Vol. II, 366 (Affidavit of Disputed Facts); CT, Vol. II, 378, Request for Judicial Notice of the United States Bankruptcy Code and the Debtor's Chapter 7 Petition and Schedules]

4. Respondents Failed to File a Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of Summary Adjudication of Counts Two and Three of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process, the Second Cause of Action for Fraud, and the Third Cause of Action for Negligence Contained in the First Amended Complaint.

Issue Raised Before the Trial Court: [CT, Vol. II, 303] [CT, Vol. II 347, 349, n.2] [CT, Vol. II, 246-261] [CT, Vol. II, 303-346] [CT, Vol. II, 246; Vol. II, 303-346]

5. The Trial Court Should Have Denied Respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment of the First Amended Complaint Because Appellant Filed Sufficient Affidavits to Establish a Genuine Factual Dispute Concerning Claims that Toscano Asserted a Settlement Agreement Obtained by Fraud in Support of Summary Judgment.

Issue Raised Before the Trial Court: [CT, Vol. II, 366]

Review of the trial court order granting summary judgment is de novo. Simms v. Oklahoma 165 F.3d 1321, 1326 (10th Cir.), cert. denied, 528 U.S. 815, 120 S.Ct. 53 (1999). The appellate court views the facts and all reasonable inferences drawn from them in the light most favorable to the non-moving party (plaintiff and appellant). Higgins v. Salt Lake County, 855 P.2d 231, 233 (Utah 1993). The applicability of the affirmative defenses of *res judicata* or *collateral estoppel* is a question of law, which appellate courts

also consider de novo. Proctor Gamble Corporation v. Amway Corporation 376 F.2d 496 (5th Cir. 2004).

IV

APPLICABLE RULES OF COURT ON APPEAL

1. Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 7 (c) (3) (A):

A memorandum supporting a motion for summary judgment shall contain a statement of material facts as to which the moving party contends no genuine issue exists. Each fact shall be separately stated and numbered and supported by citation to relevant materials, such as affidavits or discovery materials. Each fact set forth in the moving party's memorandum is deemed admitted for the purpose of summary judgment unless controverted by the responding party. Utah Rule of Civil Procedure Section 7 (c) (3) (A).

2. Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 56:

(a) For claimant. A party seeking to recover upon a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim or to obtain a declaratory judgment may, at any time after the expiration of 20 days from the commencement of the action or after service of a motion for summary judgment by the adverse party, move for summary judgment upon all or any part thereof.

(b) For defending party. A party against whom a claim, counterclaim, or cross-claim is asserted or a declaratory judgment is sought, may, at any time, move for summary judgment as to all or any part thereof.

(c) Motion and proceedings thereon. The motion, memoranda and affidavits shall be in accordance with Rule 7. The judgment sought shall be rendered if the pleadings,

depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. A summary judgment, interlocutory in character, may be rendered on the issue of liability alone although there is a genuine issue as to the amount of damages.

(d) Case not fully adjudicated on motion. If on motion under this rule judgment is not rendered upon the whole case or for all the relief asked and a trial is necessary, the court at the hearing of the motion, by examining the pleadings and the evidence before it and by interrogating counsel, shall if practicable ascertain what material facts exist without substantial controversy and what material facts are actually and in good faith controverted. It shall thereupon make an order specifying the facts that appear without substantial controversy, including the extent to which the amount of damages or other relief is not in controversy, and directing such further proceedings in the action as are just. Upon the trial of the action the facts so specified shall be deemed established, and the trial shall be conducted accordingly.

(e) Form of affidavits; further testimony; defense required. Supporting and opposing affidavits shall be made on personal knowledge, shall set forth such facts as would be admissible in evidence, and shall show affirmatively that the affiant is competent to testify to the matters stated therein. Sworn or certified copies of all papers or parts thereof referred to in an affidavit shall be attached thereto or served therewith. The court may permit affidavits to be supplemented or opposed by depositions, answers to interrogatories, or further affidavits. When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of the pleadings, but the response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. Summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against a party failing to file such a response.

(f) When affidavits are unavailable. Should it appear from the affidavits of a party opposing the motion that the party cannot for reasons stated present by affidavit facts essential to justify the party's opposition, the court may refuse the application for judgment or may order a continuance to permit affidavits to be obtained or depositions to be taken or discovery to be had or may make such other order as is just.

(g) Affidavits made in bad faith. If any of the affidavits presented pursuant to this rule are presented in bad faith or solely for the purpose of delay, the court shall forthwith order the party presenting them to pay to the other party the amount of the reasonable expenses which the filing of the affidavits caused, including reasonable attorney's fees, and any offending party or attorney may be adjudged guilty of contempt.

V STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Procedural History

Appellant filed a complaint in the district court on April 30, 2009 containing a single cause of action for abuse of process against appellees Paul James Toscano and Paul Toscano P.C. The complaint alleged that appellees had filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in behalf of a petitioner whom appellees knew did not qualify for relief under Chapter 7. The complaint further alleged that respondents did not file the petition for legitimate debt relief, but rather filed the petition solely for the ulterior purpose of circumventing a lawsuit pending in California Superior Court against the debtor for fraud and quiet title to real property. The complaint also alleged that respondents intentionally abused Chapter 7 within the meanings of 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (A) (1); 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I), and 11 U.S.C. Section

707 (b) (3) and that respondents therefore also violated Federal Rule of Bankruptcy Procedure 9011 [CT, Vol. I, 2].

Respondent Toscano deployed various efforts to evade and deny personal service of the complaint. Ultimately, respondents filed a motion on May 8, 2009 to dismiss the action alleging that the Utah District Court lacked personal and subject matter jurisdiction [CT, Vol. I, 11]. Appellant filed an Affidavit of Process Server on June 1, 2009 [CT, Vol. I, 99-101] and opposition to respondents' motion to dismiss on June 9, 2009 [CT, Vol. I, 102].¹

On August 21, 2009 respondents filed a motion for expedited summary judgment [CT, Vol. I, 136].² Respondents served notice of an expedited hearing set for September 1, 2009 by e-mail on August 22, 2009 [CT, Vol. I, 136]. Appellant quickly filed opposition to the motion for summary judgment on August 27, 2009, which incorporated a memorandum of points and authorities, a statement controverting respondents' statement of undisputed facts, and a statement of disputed facts and genuine issues [CT, Vol. II, 209-224]. On August 31, 2009 appellant filed a separate Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Opposition to respondent's motion [CT, Vol. II, 225] and a Separate Statement of Disputed Facts and Genuine Issues [CT, Vol. II, 234].

On August 31, 2009 appellant also filed and served a First Amended Complaint alleging three causes of action: (1) Abuse of Process (three separate and distinct counts); (2) Fraud, and (3) Negligence. Count one of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process

¹ Respondent Toscano employs signature sharp practices. He appeared in this action essentially pro per through his law partner and did not serve the motion to dismiss for alleged lack of personal and subject matter jurisdiction until almost a month after filing it.

² Respondents have never filed an answer to the complaint.

re-alleged the single cause of action contained in the original complaint against respondents for intentionally abusing Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in 2008. But counts two and three of the First Cause of Action for *Abuse of Process*, the Second Cause of Action for *Fraud*, and the Third Cause of Action for *Negligence* contained in the First Amended Complaint alleged entirely new claims against respondents, which arose from conduct committed by respondents on April 15, 2009 and after appellant filed the original complaint on April 30, 2009. The two new and distinct counts of abuse of process and the additional claims for fraud and negligence had separate and different factual bases than the original complaint, which contained only a single cause of action against respondents for intentionally abusing Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in 2008 [CT, Vol. II, 246]. The district court nevertheless convened a hearing on September 1, 2009 on respondents' expedited motion for summary judgment of the *original* complaint. At the time of the expedited hearing (September 1, 2009), respondents had not yet had an opportunity (due to their own procedural strategies) to file a response to the First Amended Complaint (filed August 31, 2009). The court took the matter under submission after oral argument.

On September 17, 2009, in response to appellant's First Amended Complaint, respondents filed a motion, which urged the court to essentially ignore the First Amended Complaint, which superseded the original complaint. [CT, Vol. II, 246]. Respondents filed a novel motion on September 17, 2009 to "consolidate the claims made in the amended complaint with those in plaintiff's original complaint" [CT, Vol. II, 303]. The First Amended Complaint indeed re-alleged the single claim for abuse of process contained in

the original complaint *as count one* of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process. But the First Amended Complaint also contained two new and entirely distinct counts of abuse of process (counts two and three of the first cause of action) and additional causes of action for fraud (second cause of action) and for negligence (third cause of action). The First Amended Complaint also alleged facts entirely new, separate, and distinct from the facts alleged in support of the original complaint for a single count of abuse of process [CT, Vol. II, 246-261]. Respondents nevertheless moved the court to simply consider its original summary judgment motion as a motion for summary judgment of the entire First Amended Complaint [CT, Vol. II, 303-346]. Accordingly, respondents failed to file a Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of summary adjudication of counts two and three of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process, the Second Cause of Action for Fraud, or the Third Cause of Action for Negligence contained in the First Amended Complaint [CT, Vol. II, 246; Vol. II, 303-346].³

³ Respondents eventually claimed that a settlement agreement (purportedly *effective as of March 30, 2009*) somehow barred every cause of action contained in the First Amended Complaint for conduct committed by respondents after *April 15, 2009*. But, with the sole exception of count one of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process, the First Amended Complaint alleged claims for abuse of process (two new counts), fraud, and negligence, which arose from respondents' separate and distinct misconduct newly committed on and after April 15, 2009. Respondents stopped short of alleging that appellant had actually entered into an agreement effective March 30, 2009 that waived claims against them for any and all acts, which might be committed by respondents in the future i.e. after March 30, 2009. And to be sure, even the sham settlement agreement, which respondents filed in support of their motion for summary judgment of the original complaint, does not contain any such provision. [CT, Vol. I, 142-208]. Hence, respondents failed to file a Statement of Disputed Facts in support of summary adjudication of the new claims alleged in the First Amended Complaint.

On September 23, 2009, appellant filed an affidavit, which again controverted respondents' Statement of Undisputed Facts (which pertained exclusively to count one of the First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process contained in the First Amended Complaint [CT, Vol. II, 358]), a Separate Statement of Disputed Facts and Genuine Issues as to Material Facts pertaining to all cause of actions contained in the First Amended Complaint [CT, Vol. II, 366], and a Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Opposition to respondents' "consolidated" motion for summary judgment [CT, Vol. II, 347].⁴

Appellant also filed on September 23, 2009 a request for a hearing on respondents' "Motion to Consolidate 'the claims made in the amended complaint with those in plaintiff's original complaint' and for Summary Judgment" [CT, Vol. II, 380]. The district court did not convene a separate hearing on respondents' motions [CT, Vol. II, 398]. Nevertheless, the court entered an order on October 27, 2009 granting summary judgment of the entire First Amended Complaint for respondents [CT, Vol. II, 398].⁵

B. Statement of Facts

On or about June 9, 2008, appellant filed a cross-complaint in California Superior Court against an individual to Quiet Title to real property and for Slander of Title,

⁴ Inasmuch as respondents concluded that the First Amended Complaint was identical to the original complaint, respondents in essence failed to file a motion for summary judgment of the First Amended Complaint, or at least a motion that complied with the procedural requirements of Utah Rules of Court Instead, as respondent himself puts it, "Toscano essentially reassert[ed] its original summary judgment motion" [CT, Vol. II, 303, 304], which did not include a Statement of Undisputed Facts that was at all relevant to the new causes of action contained in the First Amended Complaint.

⁵ The court also denied respondents' motions to dismiss for lack of personal and subject matter jurisdiction. [CT, Vol. II, 398].

Cancellation of Instruments, Fraud, Resulting Trust, and Conversion.⁶ In response to the cross-claims, respondents filed a Chapter 7 petition in Federal Bankruptcy Court in Salt Lake City, Utah in behalf of the individual (hereinafter the “debtor”) to block and circumvent the debtor’s own California action. Yet at the time that respondents filed the voluntary petition, respondent Toscano (the debtor’s attorney) knew that the debtor did not qualify for relief under Chapter 7 and that the debtor’s filing abused Chapter 7 within the meanings of 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (A) (1); 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I), and 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (3). [CT, Vol. II, 366 (Affidavit of Disputed Facts); CT, Vol. II, 378, Request for Judicial Notice of the United States Bankruptcy Code and the Debtor’s Chapter 7 Petition and Schedules].

Respondent Toscano is a bankruptcy law expert, and he knew that a presumption of abuse arises under 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (A) (1) if a debtor’s monthly income, reduced by allowance deductions and multiplied by sixty, is equal to or greater than twenty-five percent of the non-priority unsecured claims or \$6,575.00 (whichever is greater) or if the product is greater than \$10,950.00 (\$182.50 per month). 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (A) (1). To be sure, the debtor and respondent Toscano had completed Means Test Form B22 as required under 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) *before* filing the petition for relief, and the results triggered the presumption that the debtor was abusing Chapter 7. Means Test Form B22 contains an objective formula. The Means Test is designed to separate debtors who are abusing Chapter 7 from legitimate debtors by identifying debtors who have the ability (means) to pay creditors as a matter of law and therefore do not

⁶ The property is located in California, and the defendant resided in California before moving to Utah.

qualify for Chapter 7 relief. Hence, respondent Toscano knew before he filed the Chapter 7 petition in behalf of the debtor that the debtor was not eligible for Chapter 7 relief. [CT, Vol. II, 366 (Affidavit of Disputed Facts); CT, Vol. II, 378, (Request for Judicial Notice of the United States Bankruptcy Code and the Debtor's Chapter 7 Petition and Schedules)].

Respondent Toscano also knew before he filed the petition that the debtor had the burden pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I) to rebut the presumption that the debtor was abusing Chapter 7. Moreover, respondent Toscano knew that the debtor was obliged to rebut the presumption of abuse pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I) exclusively by demonstrating "special circumstances" within the meaning of 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I), such as a serious medical condition or a call to active duty in the Armed Forces. Respondent Toscano also knew before he filed the petition that the debtor could not rebut the presumption that she was abusing Chapter 7 by demonstrating such "special circumstances" under 11 U.S.C. Section 707 (b) (2) (B) (I). [CT, Vol. II, 366 (Affidavit of Disputed Facts); CT, Vol. II, 378, (Request for Judicial Notice of the United States Bankruptcy Code and the Debtor's Chapter 7 Petition and Schedules)].

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