2009

# Joseph Billings v. Paul James Toscano : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Plaintiff entered into a settlement agreement in open court in the US Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah, Central Division, on or about January 28, 2009 pursuant to the unambiguous terms of which Plaintiff waived any and all claims against both Defendants, including all those claims made by Plaintiff in his First Amended Complaint in the State Court Action.

In addition to the waiver of claims against Defendants, the Settlement Agreement provides that upon the confirmation of the Settlement Agreement by the Bankruptcy Court the Settlement Agreement would be deemed executed by the parties without the necessity of actually executing the Settlement Agreement and binding upon the parties thereto upon the entry by the Bankruptcy Court of its order approving the settlement. The Bankruptcy Court’s Amended Order Approving Settlement was signed and entered on or about August 21, 2009.

On September 01, 2009 Plaintiff filed an untimely appeal of the Bankruptcy Court’s Order Approving Settlement, after which he sought an order from the US Bankruptcy Court allowing his untimely appeal, which was also denied on October 07,

2009. Plaintiff then appealed the order denying his untimely appeal to the US District Court for the District of Utah, Central Division, which appeal was likewise denied. Plaintiff did not appeal the decision of the US District Court. Accordingly, all appeals in the Federal system that could possibly be made by Plaintiff are exhausted.

Judge Lindberg correctly characterized Plaintiff's claims in the State Action as either (1) claims that challenge what happened before the Bankruptcy Court in order to get that Court's approval of the settlement agreement or (b) claims that would be extinguished by the settlement agreement. The first group of claims must be dismissed because they constitute a collateral attack upon the Bankruptcy Court's decision to approve the settlement agreement and any such complaint is the exclusive province of the US Bankruptcy Court, which issued the order, or the District Court on appeal. The second group of claims must be dismissed because they were extinguished by the unambiguous terms of the Settlement Agreement as a matter of law.

Plaintiff attempts to argue the matters before this Court with reference to res judicata and/or collateral estoppel, but essentially ignores the mandatory provisions of Rule 56, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Regardless of the theory employed by the parties or by the Court, to avoid summary judgment Plaintiff was obliged by Rule 56 to demonstrate to the trial court that there was a question of material fact requiring a trial.<sup>5</sup>

---

<sup>5</sup>The trial Court's decision can be affirmed on any theory apparent in the record, even if it was not the theory relied upon by the trial Court. See, for example, *Dipoma v. McPhie*, 2001 UT 61, 29 P.3d 1225, 1230 (Utah 2001) and authorities cited therein.

The documents filed by Plaintiff in opposition to the Motions for Summary Judgement are conclusory, without foundation, argumentative and do not raise material questions of fact. Accordingly, the trial court's order cannot be successfully attacked.

## VI.

### ARGUMENTS

The District Court Ruling of October 27, 2009 does not identify exactly what claims in the First Amended Complaint the Ruling refers to when it categorizes Plaintiff's claims as "either (a) claims that challenge what happened before the Bankruptcy Court in order to get that Court's approval of the settlement agreement, or (b) claims that would be extinguished by the settlement agreement," but it does make two (2) statements on page 3 of the Ruling which clarify that categorization as follows:

. . . Plaintiff cannot collaterally attack in this Court the Bankruptcy Court's decision to approve the settlement. Plaintiff's relief from that Order, if any, must come from the Bankruptcy Court or from the reviewing District Court. [citation omitted] This Court must accept the Bankruptcy Court's ruling that the settlement is acceptable; it will not consider argument regarding the enforceability of a settlement agreement that another Court has ratified. There, all of Plaintiff's claims that challenge the court-approved settlement agreement itself must be dismissed. Those issues are reserved solely to the Bankruptcy Court or the District Court on Appeal.

. . . it is also not appropriate for this Court to consider those claims by Plaintiff that are/were extinguished by the terms of the settlement agreement. Those claims must also be dismissed.

As the following discussion will show, it was not necessary for the District Court to specifically identify which claims were claims which constitute a collateral attack

on the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement and which claims were extinguished by the terms of the settlement agreement itself, as all claims made by Plaintiff fall into either one category or the other, and possibly both.

**A. The District Court Properly Granted Summary Judgment that the Settlement Agreement Could not be Collaterally Attacked in the District Court**

In the case of *Olsen v. Board of Education*, Utah, 571 P.2d 1336, 1338 (1977) the Utah Supreme Court adopted the rather broad definition of “collateral attack” from the Restatement of Judgments (1942) Section 11, Comment A as follows:

Where a judgment is attacked in other ways than by proceedings in the original action to have it vacated or revised or modified or by a proceeding in equity to prevent its enforcement, the attack is a “**Collateral Attack.**” [emphasis in original]

The entry of the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement is the triggering event of all the woes of which Plaintiff complains. While Plaintiff strains to characterize his claims as separate and distinct from that order, they are not. For example, Plaintiff’s First Cause of Action for Abuse of Process contains three (3) counts.<sup>6</sup> The First Count of Abuse of Process [pp. 2-5] arises out of Defendants filing of the Chapter 7 Proceeding and completion of the Means Test Form B22 in the Bankruptcy Court, which Plaintiff characterizes as a misuse of judicial proceedings. [First Amended Complaint, ¶

---

<sup>6</sup>Citations are from Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint (R, 246-261) for (1) Abuse of Process, (2) Fraud, and (3) Negligence dated August 31, 2009 and to specific pages (pp.) and paragraphs (¶) thereof.

17] The Second Count of Abuse of Process [pp. 5-7] claims Defendants continued to misuse judicial proceedings to attempt to remove Plaintiff's state court action to the US Bankruptcy Court [¶ 26]. The Third Count of Abuse of Process [pp. 7-11] arises from the entry of the Settlement Agreement in the US Bankruptcy Court, which Plaintiff admits agreeing to [¶ 28], but which Plaintiff alleges Defendants changed [¶ 37].

The Second Cause of Action alleges Fraud, again arising directly from the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement, which Plaintiff alleges Defendants changed. [¶ 46]

The Third Cause of Action for Negligence arises from the same set of facts surrounding the entry of the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement [¶¶ 49 and 51]

The point, of course, is that Plaintiff's attempts to characterize his claims as separate state claims are merely extensions of the claims he unsuccessfully made in the Bankruptcy Court, but whatever he call them, they constitute a collateral attack upon the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement and bring into play the doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel.

To return to the *Olsen* case at 1337-1338, the Utah Supreme Court stated as follows:

The principles of res judicata apply to judgments in condemnation proceedings as to matters therein litigated. [citing] 30 *C.J.S. Eminent Domain* §§ 328, 414 Just as with the rules governing the application of the doctrine of res judicata to judgments generally, [citing] *Belliston v. Texaco, Inc.*, Utah, 521 P.2d 379 (1974) the parties thereto are concluded as to all matters that were put in issue, or might have been put in issue, or were

necessarily implied in the decision, such as the right to condemn and the necessity thereof. [citing] *Public Utility Dist. No. 1 of Chelan County v. Washington Water Power Co.*, 43 Wash.2d 639, 262 P.2d 976 (1953) The doctrine renders a final judgment, on the merits, by a court of competent jurisdiction, conclusive upon the parties and is a bar to subsequent litigation on the same issues. [emphasis added]

Obviously, the *Olsen* decision was a condemnation proceeding, but the principles apply to this action nonetheless. What Plaintiff tries to characterize as separate claims and causes of action in the State Action are nothing more than “matters that were put in issue, or might have been put in issue, or were necessarily implied in the decision,” in the Chapter 7 Proceeding. As in the *Olsen* case, this case involves a final judgment on the merits by a court of competent jurisdiction, which is conclusive on the parties and is a bar to subsequent litigation over “all matters that were put in issue, or might have been put in issue, or were necessarily implied in the decision.” *Id.*

Furthermore, each claim is inextricably connected to the Chapter 7 Proceeding and arises out of it. Plaintiff did not even file the State Action until after the hearing of March 30, 2009 before the Bankruptcy Court, at which Plaintiff was present, which ultimately resulted in the entry of the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement on August 21, 2009. The imminent entry of the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement triggered the filing of the state law claims by Plaintiff, and Plaintiff’s sole remedy, if he did not like the judgment of the US Bankruptcy Court, was to apply to that court for relief, which he attempted – unsuccessfully. In all events, his present attempts to gain from the Third District Court what he was unsuccessful in

obtaining from the US Bankruptcy Court – and then the US District Court on his ill-fated appeal – should not be allowed.

Plaintiff argues (Appellant’s Opening Brief, pp. 38-41) that res judicata and collateral estoppel were either waived by Defendants or wrongly applied by Judge Lindberg. As will be discussed more in detail below, Defendants did not waive res judicata or collateral estoppel, but what seems to escape Plaintiff is the reasoning of the *Olsen* case cited above, which extends to “all matters that were put in issue, or might have been put in issue, or were necessarily implied in the decision.” Thus Plaintiff’s argument (Appellant’s Opening Brief, p. 40) that there was no judgment on the merits “of any cause of action alleged in the First Amended Complaint” is without foundation. Those claims are clearly within the reach of claim preclusion and perhaps even issue preclusion by Plaintiff’s own authorities.

But even if some of the claims asserted by Plaintiff in the State Action are claims which this Court believes do not constitute a collateral attack on the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement, those claims have been extinguished by the terms of the settlement agreement as discussed immediately below.

**B. The District Court Properly Granted Summary Judgment by  
Summarily Concluding that All Claims Asserted by Plaintiff were  
Extinguished by the Settlement Agreement**

Judge Lindberg had the authority to interpret the settlement agreement



according to the following rules set out in the recent Utah case of *Giusti v. Sterling*

*Wentworth Corp.*, 2009 UT 2, ¶ 44:

Under basic rules of contract interpretation, courts first look to the writing alone to determine its meaning and the intent of the contracting parties. [citing] *Deep Creek Ranch, LLC v. Utah State Armory Bd.*, 2008 UT 3, ¶ 15, 178 P.3d 886. “If the language within the four corners of the contract is unambiguous, the parties’ intentions are determined from the plain meaning of the contractual language, and the contract may be interpreted as a matter of law.” [citing] *Green River Canal Co. v. Thayn*, 2003 UT 50, ¶ 17, 84 P.3d 1134. Only where there is ambiguity in the terms of the contract may the parties’ intent “be ascertained from extrinsic evidence.” [citing] *Deep Creek Ranch*, 2008 UT 3, § 16. “A contractual term or provision is ambiguous if it is capable of more than one reasonable interpretation because of uncertain meanings of terms, missing terms, or other facial deficiencies.” [citing] *Daines v. Vincent*, 2008 UT 51, ¶ 25, 190 P.3d 1269.

The Settlement Agreement is decidedly unambiguous. It clearly names the Defendants in this action, *i.e.*, Paul Toscano and Paul Toscano, P.C., Debtor’s counsel, and Joseph M. Billings, the Plaintiff in this action, as contracting parties. (Settlement Agreement, first paragraph, page 1) The Settlement Agreement clearly “settle[s] and resolve[s] all disputes among them and . . . mutually release[s] each other against the others [from] any and all claims and cases of action extant among them, including claims and causes of action for malicious prosecution and abuse of process against the Debtor and Debtor’s Counsel, . . .” (Settlement Agreement, page 7) The Settlement Agreement recites “good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, including the exchange of mutual releases of all claims and causes of action, including claims and causes of action for malicious prosecution and abuse of

process against the Debtor and Debtor's Counsel as set forth below, . . .” (pp. 7-8, Settlement Agreement Terms)

Subject to “approval by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah,” . . . (¶ 1.b. Conditions Precedent, page 8)<sup>7</sup>, the Settlement Agreement is “[e]ffective upon the performance of the obligations set forth in paragraphs 2 and 3 above, [and] the Parties hereby mutually release each other from any and all claims, debts, obligations, actions, demands, liabilities, costs, expenses, attorneys fees, damages, real property or controversies of any kind or nature whatsoever, including any actions for abuse of process or malicious prosecution, whether grounded in law or equity, whether known or unknown, in any way relating to or arising out of the claims and defenses raised in the Lawsuit, the Adversary Proceeding, or any motions or actions in any court, tribunal, administrative proceeding, of any kind or any nature whatsoever, . . .” (¶ 4, page 11) (emphasis added)

Furthermore, the Bankruptcy Court Order Approving Settlement contains the following language at page 2:

All parties agreed on the record in open court to the execution of the [Settlement] Agreement and to the approval of the order approving the [Settlement] Agreement by default; that is, the Parties agreed that, in lieu of executing the Agreement and approving the Order Approving the [Settlement] Agreement by affixing signatures thereto, the Parties agreed that the Order Approving the Agreement would be deemed approved and the [Settlement] Agreement would be deemed executed and binding upon the Parties upon entry of the Order Approving the [Settlement] Agreement, if no

---

<sup>7</sup>As pointed out above, this approval was given on August 21, 2009.

objection to the entry of such Order were filed by a Party thereto within 10 days after service upon all Parties to the [Settlement] Agreement of a copy of the proposed Order approving the [Settlement] Agreement and a copy of the [Settlement] Agreement. (emphasis added)

**C. None of the Documents Filed by Plaintiff Raised a Question  
of Material Fact to Preclude Summary Judgment Against Him**

In response to the Summary Judgment Motions, Plaintiff filed four (4) documents which Plaintiff contends raise questions of material fact, which documents are identified as follows:

1. Declaration of Joseph Billings in Support of Opposition to Defendants' Motions for Summary Judgment dated August 27, 2009 (the "Declaration") [R., 209-216 and 217-224]
2. Separate Statement of Disputed Facts and Genuine Issues as to Material Facts in Support of Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment dated August 31, 2009 (the "Separate Statement") [R. 234-245];
3. Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Opposition to Defendants' Motions for Summary Judgment dated August 31, 2009 (the "Memorandum") [R., 225-233]; and
4. First Amended Complaint for (1) Abuse of Process, (2) Fraud, and (3) Negligence dated August 31, 2009 (the "Amended Complaint") [ R., 246-261]

According to Plaintiff,

Plaintiff's affidavits contained testimony that respondent Toscano repudiated and breached the January 28, 2009 settlement agreement (as amended on March 30, 2009) on April 10, 2009. The affidavits also contained testimony that Plaintiff notified respondent Toscano in writing on April 10, 2009 that Plaintiff had withdrawn his offer to waive claims for abuse of process committed by respondent Toscano in 2008 because Toscano had repudiated and breached the January 28, 2009 settlement agreement (as amended March 30, 2009) and demanded unilateral material changes to the parties' agreement. Plaintiff also plainly alleged that he had rejected in writing respondent's altered version of the parties' January 28, 2009 settlement agreement (as amended March 30, 2009) [Plaintiff's Opening Brief, p. 33]

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